Meeting:
Date/Time:
Location:
Contact:
Email:

Health and Wellbeing Board
Thursday, 14 May 2015 at 2.00 pm
Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield
Mrs. R. Palmer (Tel: 0116 305 6098)
rosemary.palmer@leics.gov.uk
Membership
Mr. E. F. White CC (Chairman)
Gillian Adams
John Adler
Cllr. J. Boyce
Karen English
Lesley Hagger
Ch. Supt. Sally Healy
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Dr Andy Ker
Dr Satheesh Kumar

Dr Mayur Lakhani
Rick Moore
Mr. I. D. Ould CC
Cllr. P. Posnett
Toby Sanders
Mike Sandys
Trish Thompson
Jon Wilson

AGENDA
Item

Report by

1.

Minutes of the Meeting held on 12 March 2015.

2.

To advise of any other items which the
Chairman has decided to take as urgent
elsewhere on the agenda.

3.

Declarations of interest in respect of items on
the agenda.

4.

Position Statement by the Chairman.

(Pages 3 - 12)

Strategy.
5.

Mental Health Investment 2015/16.

West
(Pages 13 - 16)
Leicestershire and
East Leicestershire

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall
Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk
www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy

www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy

www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy

and Rutland CCG
6.

NHS Quality Premium 2015/16.

(Pages 17 - 22)
West
Leicestershire and
East Leicestershire
and Rutland CCG

Performance
7.

A Week in Leicester Royal Infirmary: The
Patient Perspective.

Healthwatch

(Pages 23 - 54)

Director of Adults
and Communities

(Pages 55 - 60)

Chief Executive,
Leicestershire
County Council

(Pages 61 - 62)

Director of Health
and Care
Integration

(Pages 63 - 68)

A presentation will be delivered under this item.

8.

Joint Health and Social Care Autism Self
Assessment.
Governance.

9.

Adjustment to Emergency Admissions
Baseline for the Better Care Fund - Urgent
Action by the Chief Executive.

10. Better Care Fund (BCF) Quarterly
Performance Reporting.
11. Date of Next Meeting.

The next meeting will be held on Thursday 16 July at 2.00pm

12. Any other items which the Chairman has
decided to take as urgent.

3

Agenda Item 1

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held at County Hall, Glenfield on
Thursday, 12 March 2015.
PRESENT
Leicestershire County Council
Mr. E. F. White CC (In the Chair)
Mr. Dave Houseman MBE, CC
Mr. I. D. Ould CC

Mick Connell
Lesley Hagger
Mike Sandys

Clinical Commissioning Groups
Toby Sanders
Healthwatch Leicestershire
Gillian Adams
Leicestershire District/Borough Councils
Cllr John Boyce
In attendance
Jane Chapman, East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical Commissioning Group
Chief Inspector Donna Tobin-Davies, Leicestershire Police
Richard Mitchell, University Hospitals of Leicester
167. Minutes.
The minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2015 were taken as read, confirmed and
signed.

168. Urgent Items.
There were no urgent items for consideration.
169. Declarations of interest.
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of
items on the agenda for the meeting.
No such declarations were made.
170. Learning Disabilities Self Assessment.
The Board considered a report from the Learning Disabilities Programme Board which
set out the findings of the Joint Health and Social Care Self Assessment. The Board also

4
received a presentation from a self-advocate and a carer on the results of the Self
Assessment. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 4’ and a copy of the slides
forming the presentation is filed with these minutes.
Arising from discussion the following points were raised:(i) The Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) had already done some work with
GPs to improve records, including the recording of young people with learning
disabilities, but recognised that there was more work to do in this area. It was
hoped that inaccuracies in recording did not result in inaccuracies elsewhere in the
system, for example in safeguarding. It was also felt that feedback from service
users and their families on the quality of health checks would be useful for the
CCGs as it would enable them to improve patient experience.
(ii) Concern was expressed that there had been a reduction in the number of people
with learning disabilities receiving a health check. In 2013/14, 75% had received a
health check; this had reduced to 64% in the current self assessment. The
importance of the health check from both a wellbeing and safeguarding
perspective was emphasised; it was felt that more needed to be done to ensure
that all people with a learning disability received one.
(iii) The concerns of service users and carers regarding funding were acknowledged.
Through the Learning Disabilities workstream of Better Care Together, the health
and social care system was looking to achieve the best possible outcomes for
service users within available resources.
(iv) It was noted that some of the issues raised through the self assessment, such as
the Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Standards, were also the
business of the Safeguarding Board. These issues should be fed into the
Safeguarding Boards and be acted on in parallel with the issues identified by the
health and Wellbeing Board. A report on progress with the action plan could then
be submitted to the Health and Wellbeing Board in due course.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the Joint Health and Social Care Self Assessment be noted;
(b) That a report on progress with actions relating to the issues identified by the Board
be submitted to a future meeting of the Board;
(c) That the CCGs be asked to develop a mechanism for receiving feedback on the
quality of health checks for people with learning disabilities from service users and
carers;
(d) That the safeguarding issues raised by the Joint Health and Social Care Self
Assessment be referred to the Safeguarding Boards for consideration;
(e) That the CCGs be asked to confirm their target for improving the number of health
checks to be completed in 2015/16.

171. Position Statement by the Chairman.

5
The Chairman presented a position statement on the following matters:Local Developments
• Better Care Together: Launch of the Public Awareness Campaign;
• Leicestershire’s Integration Programme launches research partnership with
Loughborough University and Healthwatch Leicestershire;
• Healthcare plans for Ashby;
• Improving patient flow at University Hospitals of Leicester;
• Huntingdon’s Disease Relocation;
• Care Quality Commission at Leicestershire Partnership Trust.
National Developments
• Greater Manchester Combined Authorities;
• NHS England announces a major review of the commissioning of NHS maternity
services;
• Primary Care Commissioning;
• Green Paper consultation;
• Dementia Challenge;
• Integrated Personal Commissioning;
• Vanguard sites for developing new models of care;
• NHS Tariff for 2015/16.
General Publications
• Public Health England;
• NICE;
• King’s Fund.
A copy of the position statement is filed with these minutes.
172. Change to the Order of Business.
The Chairman sought and obtained the consent of the Board to vary the order of
business from that shown on the agenda.
173. Emotional Health and Wellbeing of Children and Young People (Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Services Update).
The Board considered a report of the Director of Children and Family Services which
provided an update on the work to produce a multi-agency approach to improving the
emotional health and wellbeing of children and young people as part of the Better Care
Together children’s workstream and adult mental health workstream. A copy of the
report marked ‘Agenda Item 14’ is filed with these minutes.
Arising from discussion the following points were raised:(i) It was noted that work was ongoing with Leicester City and Rutland Councils and
Leicester City CCG to develop a single approach to this issue across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland. It was also important that a single forum had
ownership of this piece of work and co-ordinated the necessary actions.
Responsibility for the commissioning of services was already fragmented, in
particular at Tier 1 where a number of agencies were responsible for

6
commissioning the service. It was hoped that partners could work together to
develop a single offer.
(ii) There had been challenges in accessing data relating to the safeguarding of
children and young people accessing the Child and Adolescent Mental Health
Services (CAMHS), particularly with regard to adolescent suicide. The data was
important for the effective commissioning of services and would be reported to the
Health and Wellbeing Board in due course.
(iii) There had been three recent patient safety incidents within CAMHS, due to a
shortage of Tier 4 beds. The Urgent Care Board was putting a protocol in place to
ensure that this did not happen again.
(iv) The Unified Prevention Board had held a workshop to undertake a gap analysis
and mapping exercise with regard to mental health. The outputs of this could be
shared, but the importance of not duplicating work and having a single forum with
clear ownership of the project to improve CAMHS was emphasised.
(v) It was suggested that the group undertaking this work could be strengthened by
the identification of a co-lead officer with appropriate seniority from one of the
CCGs. This would help enable the work to progress at a greater pace with joint
leadership and accountability across agencies. It was felt that timescales for
completion were needed and it was suggested that consideration be given to the
use of a pooled budget.
(vi) The importance of engaging with schools with regard to Tier 1 CAMHS was
emphasised. It was noted that the preferred model for schools was for school
nurses to offer mental health support.
RESOLVED:
(a) That this report be submitted to the next meeting of the Better Care Together
Partnership Board for consideration;
(b) That Toby Sanders be asked to identify a health officer to co-lead the work on the
emotional health and wellbeing of children with Lesley Hagger;
(c) That a progress report, including data relating to safeguarding and adolescent
suicide and timescales for the completion of this work be submitted to a future
meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board;
(d) That the gap analysis product from the Unified Prevention Board be shared with
the Board for information.
174. West Leicestershire CCG Draft Operational Plan.
The Board considered the draft Operational Plan for West Leicestershire Clinical
Commissioning Group (WLCCG). A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 6’ is filed
with these minutes.
It was noted that GP access was a consistent theme raised with Healthwatch by
members of the public, although there were some really good examples of accessible

7
surgeries. The Managing Director indicated his intention to undertake ‘mystery shopping’
to test the accessibility of GP appointments.
RESOLVED:
That the draft operational plan for WLCCG be noted.
175. East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG Draft Operational Plan.
The Board considered a report from East Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical
Commissioning Group (ELRCCG) which presented the draft two year operational plan for
consideration. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 7’ is filed with these minutes.
The Board welcomed the consistency between the operational plans for ELRCCG and
WLCCG. This provided evidence of the health economy working together to build up the
scale and pace required to deliver the Better Care Together Five Year Strategy.
It was noted that there was a lack of clarity on page 156 of the report, which refered to
the number of school children in a particular part of Oadby and Wigston Borough who
were from a black or minority ethnic community. This would be clarified for the final
version of the plan.
It was also confirmed that measuring the effectiveness of stakeholder relationships was a
key line of enquiry for NHS England and that the CCGs work in this regard was included
in the plan. In support of measuring stakeholder relationships, CCGs were required to
undertake an annual 360 degree appraisal using a sample of their stakeholders.
RESOLVED:
That East Leicestershire and Rutland CCGs draft two-year Operational Plan and
contribution summary be noted.
176. Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health which presented the final
version of the Leicestershire Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment and set out the ongoing
responsibility of the Health and Wellbeing Board in this area. A copy of the report
marked ‘Agenda Item 8’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that the Public Health Team did not have formal involvement in shaping
NHS England’s commissioning plans for pharmacies. However, an informal relationship
was in place which had developed during the forming of commissioning intentions. This
could be made formal.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment be approved for publication;
(b) That the recommendations for commissioners as set on page 385 of the report be
endorsed;
(c) That the need to update the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment in 2018, as set
out in the Pharmaceutical Regulations, be noted;

8
(d) That the ongoing responsibilities with respect to the publication of an up-to-date
map of all pharmacy provision be noted and the arrangements that have been
proposed to ensure that this takes place be approved;
(e) That the Director of Public Health be recommended to establish a formal
relationship with NHS England for developing the commissioning plans for
pharmaceutical services.
177. LSCB and SAB Business Plans
The Board considered a report of the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children
Board and Safeguarding Adults Board which presented the draft Business Plans for
2015/16. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 9’ is filed with these minutes.
It was felt that there was a lack of precision to the targets in the report, for example in the
Children’s Business Plan there was a need for more specific targets relating to improving
the quality of referrals into the Council’s Early Help Service. It was confirmed that
achievement of the target would be tested by audit.
Action 2.5.4, assurance that children and young people accessed the CAMHS service
appropriately, should also be more specific, particularly in the light of the report on
children’s emotional health and wellbeing considered earlier on this agenda.
It was requested that Action 3.3., ensuring that children, young people and adults at risk
were safe, especially during transition between or across services, be amended to
include care leavers.
With regard to the Deprivation of Liberty Standards referred to in the Adult’s Business
Plan, it was noted that the CCGs were still trying to understand the implications of the
Cheshire West judgement. The Independent Chair of the Safeguarding Board was a
member of an NHS England project team looking at this issue and would ensure that the
CCGS were connected appropriately.
RESOLVED:
(a) That the Business Plans for the Local Safeguarding Children Board and
Safeguarding Adults Board for 2015/16 be noted;
(b) That the comments now made be referred to the Safeguarding Boards for
consideration.
178. The Care Act 2014.
The Board considered a report of the Director of Adults and Communities which provided
an update on the Council’s progress to date with readiness for implementation of the
Care Act Phase 1 on 1 April 2015. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 10’ is filed
with these minutes.
It was noted that there were risks to the County Council’s ability to fund the requirements
of the Care Act from April 2016, due to uncertainties regarding the Government’s
proposals.

9
RESOLVED:
(a) That the update on progress with implementation of the Care Act 2014 be noted;
(b) That a further report reviewing the effectiveness of the implementation of Phase 1
of the Care Act and setting out the requirements for Phase 2 be submitted to a
future meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board.
179. Findings from spending a week in LRI
The Board considered a presentation which out Healthwatch’s findings and observations
from spending 27 to 30 January 2015 in four departments of the Leicester Royal
Infirmary. A copy of the slides forming the presentation is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that staff at the Leicester Royal Infirmary had all been very helpful.
Feedback from the visit would be shared with UHL and the CCGs.
With regard to x-ray services, it was noted that a regular flow of patients was needed to
make the service viable if services were to be provided at multiple locations in the county.
It was acknowledged that the service at the Leicester Royal Infirmary was very busy and
noted that the CCGs intended to review the acuity of patients who could be x-rayed at the
urgent care centres to see if a viable x-ray service there was possible.
It was noted that there were a number of initiatives in place to improve ambulance
handover as there were multiple reasons for delays in this area. Any new initiative
needed to be sustainable. One such initiative was ‘see and treat’; where paramedics
were trained to treat certain patients in the community rather than convey the patient to
hospital. Leicestershire currently had the highest rate in the East Midlands of patients
seen by EMAS who were not conveyed to hospital. This was due to the emphasis that
had been placed on EMAS making best use of community based alternatives including
those in the Better Care Fund plan
RESOLVED:
That the findings from Healthwatch’s week at LRI be welcomed.
180. Performance Report.
The Board considered a joint report of the Chief Executive of Leicestershire County
Council and the Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit (GEM CSU) which
provided an update on performance against current priorities in the Joint Health and
Wellbeing Strategy and Commissioner Performance Frameworks, based on data
available at the end of the third quarter of 2014/15. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda
Item 12’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that, since the report had been drafted, there had been slight improvements
in the targets around admission to care homes, older people being at home 91 days after
discharge from hospital and the number of delayed transfers of care.
With regard to smoking cessation, it was clarified that one of the reasons for the
reduction in uptake of the service was that people were using e-cigarettes to help them
stop smoking. These were not currently part of the smoking cessation service, although
it was being recommended.

10
There were three parts to the target for children’s oral health. Leicestershire performed
poorly with regard to three year olds showing some signs of decay but this did not lead to
severe decay or multiple teeth being affected. The Public Health Department was
recommissioning the oral health promotion service to ensure it was targeted at lifestyle
changes to prevent the initial occurrence of decay. Access to dentists was not an area of
concern.
RESOLVED:
That the performance summary, issues identified this quarter and actions planned in
response to improve performance be noted.
181. Adjustment to Emergency Admissions Baseline for the Better Care Fund Plan.
[At this point the meeting became inquorate as the CCG representative was no longer
present].
Members of the Board considered a report of the Director of Health and Care Integration
which provided the latest situation on the current baseline for the total non-elective
admissions into hospital (general and acute) per 100,000 population and sought a
decision on whether the target should be revised within the Better Care Fund Plan. A
copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 13’ is filed with these minutes.
All members present indicated their support for the proposal.
RESOLVED:
That the Chief Executive of Leicestershire County Council be requested to revise and
agree with the CGGs the target for the number of Emergency Admissions into hospital
within the Better Care Fund Plan and to report the outcome of his decision to the next
meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board.
182. Update on Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Reform and the Role of
the Health and Wellbeing Board.
Members of the Board considered a report of the Director of Children and Family
Services which provided an update on progress in implementing Special Educational
Needs and Disability (SEND) reform and highlighted the challenge in developing strop
partnership working across health, education and social care professionals. A copy of
the report marked ‘Agenda Item 15’ is filed with these minutes.
It was noted that the Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board would not commit the
Board to signing any charters, given that the Board had policies and strategies in place
which reflected the needs of Leicestershire’s residents and was committed to delivering
these.
It was suggested that a small working group be established to take the work on SEND
forward, particularly with regard to personal budgets. The groups should include
representatives from health, social care and education services.
RESOLVED:

11
(a) That the issues relating to integrated personal commissioning be referred to the
Integration Executive for consideration;
(b) That current progress in implementing SEND reform be noted.
183. East Midlands Ambulance Service Quality Account.
Members of the Board considered the draft Quality Account for 2014/15 for the East
Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS). A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 16’ is
filed with these minutes.
It was noted that EMAS was providing a range of good and innovative services.
However, the key issue was still response times and it was felt that EMAS need a
timescale for meeting the target. The initiatives introduced to improve response times,
such as ensuring that the fleet was robust, staff recruitment, non-conveyance and
addressing issues with hospital handovers were welcomed and it was hoped that they
would contribute to an improvement in response times.
It was noted that, in his role as local councillor, Mr Ould had been made aware of a
number of cases where there had been excessive delays in response times. These
would be referred to EMAS for investigation.
RESOLVED:
(a) That officers be requested to produce a formal commentary on the Quality
Account, based on this Board’s discussions, and forward it to the East Midlands
Ambulance Service;
(b) That officers be requested to seek the view of those members of the Board who
were not present and incorporate them into the Board’s response to the Quality
Account.
184. Update on S106 Contributions for Healthcare.
The Board considered a report which updated the Health and Wellbeing Board on the
current situation with regard to Section 106 (developer) contributions for healthcare. A
copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 17’ is filed with these minutes.
RESOLVED:
That the update on the management of S106 contributions for healthcare be noted and
that further updates be provided to future meetings of the Board.
185. Date of Next Meeting.
It was noted that the next meeting of the Board would take place on Thursday 14th May at
2pm at County Hall.

2.00 - 4.45 pm
12 March 2015

CHAIRMAN

12

This page is intentionally left blank

13

Agenda Item 5

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 14 MAY 2015
REPORT OF THE LEICESTER, LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND
CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS
MENTAL HEALTH INVESTMENT 2015/16
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to provide an interim briefing report regarding how the
additional funding for Mental Health announced in the Budget for 2015/16 will be
allocated in Leicestershire.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

In November 2014 the DoH published “NHS England investment in mental health
2015/16” http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/payment-systs-mhnote.pdf which stated:
“NHS England is committed to treating mental health and physical health as equally
important: our objective is to ensure that mental and physical health have parity of
esteem within the NHS. We have already taken steps to achieve this through the
Parity of Esteem programme board, including by delivering the first ever development
programme for CCGs on mental health commissioning.
One of the ways in which mental health services have not historically had parity of
esteem is in waiting times: in physical health, the NHS Constitution guarantees
patients’ right not to wait more than 18 weeks for consultant-led treatment, but mental
health treatment is excluded. For the first time, NHS England will introduce waiting
time standards for mental health, supported by £80 million of investment in 2015/16.”

Background
3.

As a result of the national announcement regarding mental health investment, during
2015/16, in addition to other commissioner investment, NHS England will specifically
invest:
•

£40 million through the tariff in delivering its commitment that by April 2016, more
than 50% of people experiencing first episode psychosis will receive a NICEconcordant package of care within 2 weeks of referral;

•

£30 million in developing liaison psychiatry services to support our long-term aim
that all acute hospitals should have a liaison psychiatry service which is
appropriate to the size and scale of the hospital;

14
•

£10 million on Improving Access to Psychological Therapies (IAPT) to ensure
that 75% of those referred to an IAPT service will be treated within 6 weeks of
referral and 95% within 18 weeks.

4.

The key pressure felt in Mental Health Services during both 2013/14 and 2014/15
have related to Acute Inpatient services. Both years have included significant
expenditure on Out of County (OOC) placements.

5.

During 2014/15 investment was put into improving community based services to both
avoid admission to inpatient services and aid earlier discharges to community based
settings. This investment is being further enhanced in 2015/16.

6.

Including the additional investments listed below the total expenditure on Mental
Health Services in 2015/16 in Leicestershire is estimated to be –
CCG
East Leicestershire and Rutland
West Leicestershire
Total

Expenditure £000’s
26,768
34,644
61,412

Proposals/Options
7.

In Leicestershire, this funding will be distributed as follows:-

MH Growth included in 2015/16
Contracts
Elements related to NHS England
Investments
People experiencing first episode
psychosis (PIER) £40m from tariff
deflator adjustment)
Emergency Department Triage Nurses
(Liaison Psychiatry £30m)
IAPT
Acute Mental Health Pathway
Crisis house
Step down facilities & enhanced
Community Services
Out of county Acute Inpatient

East West Total
£000s £000s £000s

Comment

90

106

196 Priority from NHS England

114

147

0

90

261 Priority from NHS England
Awaiting NHS England
90 information

382

647

1029 New care pathway

209
126

354
214

563 New care pathway
340 New care pathway

16
551
586

17
165
746

2074

2486

Other investments
Eating Disorders
Additional investment in Rehab Services
Continuing Healthcare MH
Total growth committed

Awaiting NHS England
33 information
716 Patient repatriation
1332 Particularly Older People
4560

15
8.

Increased investment has also been made in Learning Disability Services. In
addition to additional funding being invested in Continuing Healthcare for patients
with a Learning Disability (£208k) the two Leicestershire and Rutland CCG’s have
significantly increased their investment in the Learning Disability pool which is hosted
by Leicestershire County Council.

9.

This additional investment in the pool totals £1.25m for 2015/16 which will be spent
on additional community based services for people with a learning disability and for
care home/ nursing home placements as appropriate for the individual patient.

Recommendation
10. The Board is recommended to note the contents of this interim briefing report
11. The Board is recommended to request further reports (proposed at intervals of 6
months) to provide assurance on the implementation and impact of the changes,
demonstrating how the investment has improved parity of esteem, and that
commissioners seek support from Healthwatch Leicestershire in assessing the
impact from the public’s perspective.
Partnership Working and associated issues
12.

All planned service changes are being developed in conjunction with key partners
including Leicestershire Partnership, Leicestershire County Councils, Rutland County
Council and Voluntary Sector organisations.

Officer to Contact
Jim Bosworth
Associate Director of Contracting
On behalf of: Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland CCGs
Email: Jim.Bosworth@westleicestershireccg.nhs.uk

16

This page is intentionally left blank

17

Agenda Item 6

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 14th MAY 2015
REPORT OF EAST LEICESTERSHIRE AND RUTLAND CCG AND WEST
LEICESTERSHIRE CCG
NHS QUALITY PREMIUM 2015/16
Purpose of report
1.

The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) with
information on specific indicators that relate to the Quality Premium 2015/16 and
request support on those indicators where choices need to be made.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG Draft Operational Plan and West
Leicestershire CCG Draft Operational Plan were presented to Health and Wellbeing
Board on 12 March 2015

Background
3.

The Quality Premium for 2015/16 has been published, and is intended to reward
CCGs for improvements in the quality of the services that they commission and for
associated improvement in health outcomes. This premium will be paid to CCGs in
2016/17, and covers a number of national and local priorities. Monies will be awarded
for the achievement of the following:
• Reducing potential years of lives lost through causes considered amenable to
healthcare (PYLL) 10%
• Urgent and emergency care 30%
• Mental health 30%
• Improving antibiotic prescribing in primary and secondary care 10%
• Two local measures 20%
There are also a number of NHS Constitution indicators that will also impact on the
Quality Premium. Monies will be deducted for non-achievement. These are:
•
•
•
•

RTT; 90% completed admitted; 95% completed non-admitted and 92%
incomplete standard
Maximum four hour waits for A&E departments – 95% standard
Maximum 14 day wait from an urgent GP referral for suspected cancer
– 93% standard
Maximum 8 minutes responses for Category A (Red 1) ambulance calls
– 75% standard

There are choices and decisions that require the formal agreement of Health and
Wellbeing Boards. NHS England’s Area Team has advised that the choice of these

18
indicators will need to be submitted by 14 May 2015. Given the timeframe of
information being supplied by NHS England this is the first opportunity the CCGs
have had to submit to the Health and Wellbeing Board
Proposals/Options
4.

There are a number of indicators that CCGs are able to choose as part of their
Quality Premium. Full list in Appendix A. The Health and Wellbeing Board members
are asked to support the following:
•

PYLL: ELR & WLCCG’s have opted to choose a reduction in the potential years
of life lost from amenable mortality for the CCG population to be achieved over
the period between the 2012 and 2015 calendar years of 1.2%. This is the
minimum requirement to meet this element of the Quality Premium.

•

Urgent & emergency care: ELR & WLCCG’s have opted to choose ‘The total
number of delayed days caused by delayed transfers of care (DTOC),
attributable to the NHS, in 2015/16 should be less than the number in 2014/15’.

•

Mental health: ELR & WLCCGs have opted to choose ‘Reduction in the number
of patients attending an A&E department for a mental health-related needs who
wait more than four hours to be treated and discharged, or admitted, together
with a defined improvement in the coding of patients attending A&E’.

•

2 Local Priorities:
ELRCCG:
(1) Number of primary care completed care plans in Care Homes to reach 97%
by April 2016, based on current levels of 2310 (95%) completed care plans The rationale for having this as a local priority is that ELRCCG want to ensure
proactive co-ordinated care management of care home residents who are often
vulnerable with complex frailty.
(2) Deaths in Usual Place of Residence + hospice to achieve 50% by April 2016.
(14/15 target: 49%) - we want to continue to ensure that patients in ELRCCG
are supported to die in their usual place of residence/choice. We achieved our
ambition for last year and plan to stretch this during 15/16.
WLCCG:
(1) Patient Satisfaction with access to Primary Care, securing a 74.6%
satisfaction rate.
(2) Deaths in Usual Place of Residence to achieve 51% by April 2016. (14/15
target: 50%)

Timetable for Decisions
5.

To be signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board at its meeting on 14th May 2015.

19
Conclusions/Recommendations
6. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to support the options made by ELR & WL
CCG in Section 4.
Background papers
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/04/qual-prem-guid-1516.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/ccg-ois/qual-prem/

Officer to Contact
Yasmin Sidyot
Head of Planning & Strategic
Commissioning
East Leicestershire & Rutland CCG
0116 295 5177
yasmin.sidyot@eastleicestershireandrutlan
dccg.nhs.uk

Caron Williams
Assistant Director, Strategy & Planning
West Leicestershire CCG
01509 567797
Caron.Williams@westleicestershireccg.nhs.
uk

List of Appendices
A) Full list of Quality Premium 15/16 options
B) UNIFY submission for ELRCCG & WLCCG
Relevant Impact Assessments

Partnership Working and associated issues
7.

ELR & WL CCGs, UHL & LPT

20
Appendix A
Full list of Quality Premium 15/16 options
Indicator
Reducing potential years of lives lost through causes considered amenable to
healthcare
Urgent & emergency care: There is a menu of measures for CCGs to choose.
One, several or all measures can be selected
(1) Avoidable emergency admissions – composite measure of:
• Unplanned hospitalisation for chronic ambulatory care
sensitive conditions
• Unplanned hospitalisation for asthma, diabetes and epilepsy
in under 19s
• Emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not
usually require hospital admission
• Emergency admissions for children with lower respiratory
tract infections (LRTIs)
(2) Delayed transfers of care
(3) Increase in the number of patients admitted for non-elective
reasons, who are discharged at weekends or bank holidays
The choice must be done in conjunction with the Health & Well Being Board
& NHS England local team.
Mental health: There is a menu of measures for CCGs to choose. One,
several or all measures can be selected.
(1) Reduction in the no. of patients attending A&E for mental healthrelated needs who wait more than four hours to be treated and
discharged, or admitted, together with a defined improvement in the
coding of patients attending A&E
(2) Reduction in the no. of people with severe mental illness who are
currently smokers
(3) Increase in the proportion of adults in contact with secondary mental
health services who are in paid employment
(4) Improvement in the health related quality of life for people with long
term mental health condition
The choice must be done in conjunction with the Health & Well Being Board
& NHS England local team
Improving antibiotic prescribing in primary and secondary care. This is a
composite measure consisting of:
(a) reduction in the number of antibiotics prescribed in primary care
(b) reduction in the proportion of broad spectrum anti-biotic prescribed in
primary care
(c) secondary care providers validating their total antibiotic prescription
data
Two local measures; These should reflect local priorities identified in joint
health and wellbeing strategies. Local measures should not duplicate the
national measures

% of QP
10%
30%

30%

10%

10%
10%

21
Appendix B
The following shows the submission made to UNIFY.
East Leicestershire & Rutland CCG
Weighting
Urgent and Emergency Care (select measure below, where applicable)
Measure 1
Measure 2
Measure 3

30%

SUM (30%)

30%

Mental Health (select measure below, where applicable)
Measure 1
Measure 2
Measure 3
Measure 4

30%

SUM (30%)

30%

Local Priorities (select 2 local priorities)
Select a measure from the list

OR enter a measure here (4000
characters or less)
LOCAL PRIORITY 1 MEASURE

Number of primary care completed care plans in Care Homes to reach 97% by April 2016, based on current levels of 95% completed care plans
Number of primary care completed care plans in Care Homes to reach 97% by April 2016, based on current levels of 95% completed care plans

10%

Deaths in Usual Place of Residence + hospice to achieve 50% by April 2016. (14/15 target: 49%)
Deaths in Usual Place of Residence + hospice to achieve 50% by April 2016. (14/15 target: 49%)

10%

Select a measure from the list

OR enter a measure here (4000
characters or less)
LOCAL PRIORITY 2 MEASURE

West Leicestershire CCG
Weighting
Urgent and Emergency Care (select measure below, where applicable)
Measure 1
Measure 2
Measure 3

30%

SUM (30%)

30%

Mental Health (select measure below, where applicable)
Measure 1
Measure 2
Measure 3
Measure 4

30%

SUM (30%)

30%

Local Priorities (select 2 local priorities)
Select a measure from the list

OR enter a measure here (4000
characters or less)
LOCAL PRIORITY 1 MEASURE

Patient Satisfaction with access to Primary Care, securing a 74.6% satisfaction rate
Patient Satisfaction with access to Primary Care, securing a 74.6% satisfaction rate

10%

Deaths in Usual Place of Residence to achieve 51% by April 2016
Deaths in Usual Place of Residence to achieve 51% by April 2016

10%

Select a measure from the list

OR enter a measure here (4000
characters or less)
LOCAL PRIORITY 2 MEASURE

22

This page is intentionally left blank

23

Agenda Item 7

A Week in Leicester Royal
Infirmary (LRI)
The Patient Perspective

24

Foreword
Healthwatch Leicestershire
is committed to improving
patient experiences of
local health and care
services. The Leicester
Royal Infirmary (LRI) is one
of the largest hospitals for
residents of Leicestershire
and Leicester.
In June 2014, a team of Healthwatch
Leicestershire staff and volunteers spent
12 hours in the Accident & Emergency
(A&E) Department at LRI. We committed to
revisiting A&E in January 2015.
In January 2015 Healthwatch Leicestershire
staff, board members and volunteers
supported by Healthwatch Leicester staff
and volunteers spent ‘Four Days at LRI’
listening to 262 patients and talking to staff
in:

 A&E on 30 January

 Discharge Lounge on 29 January

 Ophthalmology Eye Clinic and Eye
Casualty on 28 January

 Ears, Nose and Throat Department
on 27 January
We are grateful to John Adler, CEO of
University Hospitals of Leicester (UHL) NHS
Trust who ensured Healthwatch staff and
volunteers were given unlimited access to
patients and staff so that we could capture
honest and unbiased experiences.

2

How we’ll use this report
This report and recommendations will be
shared with the UHL Board and Healthwatch
Leicestershire staff have offered to meet
individual departments to discuss the
emerging findings. These findings will also be
presented at the Leicestershire Health and
Wellbeing Board and to the three local Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) boards as well
as to other stakeholders.
In addition, our report will be shared with
MPs, NHS England, Healthwatch England,
neighbouring Local Healthwatch and
respective local authorities. We look forward
to working closely with these groups to
help implement our recommendations and
improve health services.
Our staff and volunteers are grateful to the
patients and LRI staff for sharing their stories
and insights.
Gillian Adams, Vice Chair

25
Contents

Contents
Foreword

2

Contents

3

Executive Summary
 Emerging Themes

4
6



Recommendations

7

Introduction to Main Findings

8

Methodology

9









Adults and Children’s A&E

10

Discharge Lounge

15

Ophthalmology

17

ENT

24

Patients’ Overall Experience

28

What’s Next?

30

Acknowledgements

31

3

26

Executive Summary
We spent a week at LRI between 27 and 30 January 2015.

Our aim was to collect evidence and
insight by listening to patients across
four departments. We wanted to
understand what changes they would
make to improve their experience of
using services at LRI.

WE SPOKE TO

262
PATIENTS

Patients rated their
experience as:

This is where we went and who we
spoke to:

1

2

3

5.81

4
1
Poor

Accident & The
Ophthalmology Ear, Nose
Emergency Discharge (Eye Casualty
& Throat
Lounge
and Eye Clinic) Dept.

105

8

surveys
completed

surveys
surveys
completed completed

83

66
surveys
completed

“From the minute I came into
Children’s A&E, I was greeted with a
caring and kind receptionist.”
Oadby and Wigston patient

4

7
Excellent

In September 2014 Healthwatch
Leicestershire produced a report
called ‘Patient Views on Quality of
Services’ that looked at the perception
of a quality service and at what makes
a patient experience meet their
expectations. This report identified five
key attributes that patients looked for
in a service. These were: trained and
qualified staff, knowledgeable staff,
helpful staff, caring staff and friendly
staff.
In our visit to the LRI in January 2015,
we asked respondents to prioritise
from these five key attributes. Patients’
top three priorities were:
1. Trained and qualified staff
2. Knowledgeable staff
3. Caring staff

27
Executive Summary

1. ACCIDENT & EMERGENCY (A&E)

33%

35%

44%



of patients came straight
to A&E without seeking
alternative care. Some of these
patients were unaware of
alternative services.
of patients tried to get a
GP appointment before
turning up at A&E. 1 in 3 were
unsuccessful and 1 in 7 would
have preferred to be treated
locally.
of patients had visited A&E
more than once in the
previous 12 months.

3. OPHTHALMOLOGY

2. THE DISCHARGE LOUNGE

6 out of 8 patients felt that they were not told
what would happen when they arrived at the
discharge lounge or how long they would
have to wait.

2 out of 5 patients did not feel well enough
to be discharged. They said they would like
to be taken to another hospital setting, but
not home.

3 out of 6 patients were unsure or did not
know where to get support services once
they left hospital.

4. EAR, NOSE AND THROAT

64%

of patients tried to get help
somewhere else before
attending Eye Casualty. Half of
the respondents told us that
they contacted their GP. Others
mentioned opticians and A&E
services.

1 in 3

patients said they seldom or
never see their designated
consultant. 33% said they
always do.

58%

of patients had experienced
cancellation of previous
appointments at the Eye Clinic.
The notice they were given
ranged from a few hours (same
day notice) to five months.

37%



of patients had experienced
cancellation of previous
appointments. Repeat
patients expected to have
an appointment cancelled.

75%

of patients had been to the
department before.



80%

of the patients had attended
Eye Clinic more than once in
the previous 12 months.

5

28
Executive Summary

Emerging Themes
During our conversations with patients at the LRI, the
following themes were identified as common issues
across all departments.
Waiting times
Waiting time was the first point that many
patients expressed frustration with when
telling us about their experiences within
the LRI departments that we visited. The
underlying goodwill of patients means
they accept lengthy waiting times, but their
frustration was evident
Patients were concerned about the length of
time that they had to wait on a regular basis
and did not understand why this was the
case. There was a sense from patients that
no one was trying to resolve this issue.

waiting on location, it was highlighted that
the appointment letter that is sent out to
patients could better describe the location of
the appointment.
There is also a need for a better process to
call patients into their appointments from
the waiting areas. Patients with poor sight or
hearing had difficulty seeing appointment
boards and hearing their names called.

Information
The information that was displayed on the
walls of various departments was not in a
clear and appropriate format for patients to
read and understand. This was an issue that
was highlighted by patients, Healthwatch
and LRI staff. Improvements in this area
would better inform patients on specific
issues in each department.
For example, in the Ophthalmology Clinic
45% of the patients we spoke to were 75
or over. This group may possibly benefit
from larger concise information that they
could read whilst seated.

Communication
Patients would like to receive prior notice
of delays so that they could be better
informed as to how long they may have to
wait. As well as being kept informed whilst

6

The staff are fine, it’s the
systems that are not very
good. Processes are not fit for
purpose. Appointment letters
need to give information
clearly that is easy to
read. This service seems
overwhelmed and waiting
times are excessive.
Ophthalmology Patient

29
Executive Summary

Recommendations
UHL NHS Trust
1.

To better utilise the spaces allocated for patient
information, and re-design the layout of waiting
areas for improved patient communication
and flow. For example, using wall space to help
promote alternatives to A&E services.

2.

To involve East Midlands Ambulance Service
(EMAS) in the design of the ambulance
hand over station for the new Emergency
Department.

3.

To review practical solutions that can be
introduced to improve waiting times and
improve the current scheduling system.
a.

b.

c.

Patients are often unclear why
they are waiting for such lengths of
time especially when they have an
appointment with an allocated time slot.
The process of calling patients to
their appointments from the waiting
areas needs improving, particularly in
departments where patients may have
poor sight or be hard of hearing.

When assessing and awarding the tender for
the Urgent Care Centre contract at the LRI,
we urge local CCGs to include the patient
experience as a decision making factor. A&E
and the Urgent Care Centre should ideally
provide seamless pathways from arrival to
triage to treatment for patients.

6.

To continue campaigns, such as Choose
Better and Feeling Under the Weather, and
to promote the different healthcare services
available across the County. so that the public
are clear where to go if they need advice for
various conditions.

All Stakeholders
Leicester Partnership NHS Trust (LPT)
UHL NHS Trust
CCGs
Leicestershire County Council (LCC)
7.

The information that is sent to patients
with their appointment letter should
provide better location details, an
understanding of clinic processes and an
indication of typical waiting times. The
latter will allow patients to plan meals and
when to take their medication.

Clinical Commissioning
Groups (CCGs)
4.

5.

All GP Practices to adopt an appointments
system that allows flexible, pre-bookable
appointments as well as on the day
appointments (or a drop-in service). Patients
report that whilst some GP practices have an
appointments system that works well, others
do not. This leads to patients being unable to
access GPs when they need them.

To continue collaboration between all
stakeholders. We observed great partnership
working in the A&E department - LPT and
LCC housing staff working alongside local GP’s
and UHL to reduce hospital admissions and
discharge patients. This is testament to some
of the excellent work that is taking place to
ease hospital pressures and improve patient
care and experience.

Healthwatch Leicestershire
8.

To work with UHL to share patient
experiences and this report with staff and
members via meetings, newsletters and
publications.

9.

To conduct an Enter & View visit of the
handover process from ambulance to A&E
Department at LRI.

7

30
Introduction to the Main Findings

Introduction to the Main
Findings
Healthwatch Leicestershire understands the
strategic overview of initiatives such as Better
Care Together1 , a programme to reform
health and social care across Leicester,
Leicestershire and Rutland, and how patients’
experiences can be used to develop better
outcomes for those that use services.
We listened to 262 patients across four
departments and the majority that we spoke
to had a positive experience at LRI. We heard
from patients across all the departments
who wanted to see improved waiting
times, information that is easy to read and
understand and better communication
processes implemented.
Many of the issues we heard about are
reflected in the Care Standards for staff,
Caring at its Best2 , a promise to patients that
UHL has developed to measure their service.
The departments that we visited were as
follows:
 The A&E Department
 Discharge Lounge
 Ophthalmology Eye Casualty & Eye
Clinic
 The ENT Department
The findings are reported by department in
order to provide a clear understanding of
what patients told us in each department.

1
2

8

http://www.bettercareleicester.nhs.uk/
https://www.euhl.nhs.uk/docs/CaringAtItsBest.pdf

31
Methodology

Methodology
To capture patient feedback we carried out a two part
survey. Part A was completed face to face with the patient
prior to their treatment/appointment and Part B was left
with the patient to complete after they had been seen by a
health professional.
Parts A and B were conducted in the following
departments:






A&E Department – 105 surveys
Ophthalmology Eye Casualty –
27 surveys
Ophthalmology Eye Clinic –
56 surveys
ENT Department – 66 surveys

Part A only of the survey was also conducted
in:



The Discharge Lounge – 8 surveys.
The patient journey in this department
is very different from the other
departments that were surveyed,
therefore part B was not completed.

Part A of the survey was completed with
the patient and gathered the majority of the
data. Each survey was designed specifically
for the intended department but also
contained standard, cross-cutting questions
for consistency.
We retrieved part Bs on 48% (122) of surveys
conducted. Part B of the survey was
developed to capture the patients overall
satisfaction of the service they received on
the day and were left with the patient for
them to complete after their treatment.

In all departments where the survey was
conducted, LRI staff members were given
an opportunity to anonymously tell us their
views regarding any improvements which
could be introduced that would benefit
patients and their experience of using that
department.
As part of a holistic process of learning
lessons, Healthwatch staff scheduled a
de-brief after the visit to understand what
worked well and what could be improved
for future engagement. This process
also included meeting with the patient
experience manager at UHL prior to the visit
in order to build relationships, liaise with the
various departments both before and after
the visit and discuss next steps.

We listened to
and surveyed
262 patients
9

32

Adult and Children’s
Accident & Emergency Dept
The A&E department at LRI provides emergency care for adults and
children 24 hours a day, seven days a week. We listened to patients across
Minors, Majors and Children’s A&E to better understand what matters
most to patients using the service.

;

105

Part A surveys
completed

50

39

52

Part B surveys
completed
3 people did
not state their
gender

Patients rated their experience of A&E
as:

5.92

1
Poor

84%
16%

7
Excellent

of patients said that
their expectations of
A&E were met ‘very
much’ or ‘extremely’.
of patients said that
their expectations of
the service were met
‘moderately’, ‘slightly’
or ‘not at all’.

60
40
0

Leicestershire
Residents
Leicester
Residents
Rutland
Residents

5 people did not state where they live

10

33
A& E Department

What patients told us:
1

44%

of patients had attended A&E
more than once in the last 12
months. The number of times
they had attended ranged
from 1 to 12 times. Of those
patients that had attended
before, 70% did not try to
book a GP appointment.

2

35%

of patients tried to make
a GP appointment before
attending A&E. 1 in 3
were unable to obtain an
appointment.

3

28%

of patients were advised
to attend A&E by their
GP practice (including GP
receptionists and out of
hours GP’s) and 33% made
the decision themselves. Of
the patients that made the
decision themselves, 42%
were from Leicester City.

4

22

patients were sent to A&E
from the onsite Urgent Care
Centre.

5

1 in 7

people were unsure or felt
that they did not need to
attend A&E. Patients told
us that they would have
preferred to have attended
their GP or that they wanted
reassurance.

6

50%

Ʈ

7

8

of patients arrived at A&E
by car.

Patients that arrived by
ambulance:

15%

s

38% tried to make a GP
appointment before they
called an ambulance.
These patients
mentioned the need for
shorter waiting times for
ambulance staff to book
patients into A&E and
a need for quicker pain
relief.

s

29% of ambulance
patients were from
Charnwood.

s

44% of ambulance
patients were 65 years
of age or older.

of patients had a problem
locating the department.
They told us that it is difficult
to find A&E from the car park
and that the lines on the floor
were a little confusing.

“My dad had everything done
to make him comfortable and to
investigate his problems and all
in good time.”
Charnwood patient

11

34
A& E Department

What patients told us:
It is a nightmare to make an
appointment at the GP especially
when you work. GP also has different
doctors every time we go.
City patient
The GP is not helpful. 8am is always
busy and when I go down there,
they are not happy. My daughter
had temperature for three days and
the GP kept advising to go to the
pharmacy instead.
City patient
GP could have dealt with issue. I rang
the GP they said to go to A&E. This
was just before closing time as they
had no appointments left.
City patient
I didn’t even bother with the GP as
you need to ring before 8am or you
can’t get in.
A&E patient
I phoned the GP and got no help,
only a promise to phone back and
half the time even that does not
happen
North West Leicestershire
patient

12

Porter who transported me would
not allow me to use toilet. She then
stormed off and then refused to take
me into A&E.
Oadby & Wigston patient

“Could be more attentive.
I don’t feel that they are
helping enough.”
City patient

“I asked for A&E and was told
to go to level 1 and follow the red
line, then the Urgent Care
Centre directed me here.
It would be nice if there were clear
signs for A&E.”
Hinckley & Bosworth patient

“The mental health care is
rubbish. They’re not interested
unless you are suicidal - not
urgent enough.”
City patient

35
A& E Department

The table below, shows the breakdown of patients by Clinical Commissioning Group areas:
East Leicestershire

West Leicestershire

Leicester City

Arrived by ambulance

Arrived by ambulance

Arrived by ambulance

37%

 13/27

48%

20%

 15/33

 15/40

Visited A&E in 12 months

Visited A&E in 12 months

Visited A&E in 12 months

Tried to book a GP
appointment

Tried to book a GP
appointment

Tried to book a GP
appointment

1 in 3

1 in 3

GP advised to attend A&E

GP advised to attend A&E

19%

27%

1 in 3
GP advised to attend A&E

23%

We found that some parents were frustrated with their GP practice
regarding their experience.
They also spoke about car parking and complimented the waiting area and staff.
The following comments are from parents:

Fantastic experience, can’t fault
anything.
Hinckley & Bosworth patient
Happy with this department, it’s
great 9 out of 10.
City patient

Staff have been really helpful.
Charnwood patient
When coming alone for first time
signage for A&E centre could be
better. Once on the hospital site,
not sure where to go and where to
park.
Harborough patient

13

36
A& E Department

Patient views and Healthwatch observations
Waiting times – Patients commented
about waiting times although during the
time that we spent in the department
patients were initially seen in good time.
However, we did notice that patients were
seen by a consultant or nurse and then
asked to wait to be seen by someone else.
This is where some of the concerns were
directed.
Assistance – Patients on the day told us
that attention to detail specifically around
care could be slightly improved. One patient
in majors said, “There is no call bell - how do
I call for help?”
Pain relief - Patients spoke about the
frustration of waiting for pain relief before
being treated, as this can often be a few
hours.
X-ray - It was noticeable over our two visits
to A&E how frequently the x-ray department
was being utilised. One patient commented
that it would be useful to have more x-ray
facilities located in other places to avoid
having to go to A&E.

93 year old lady left with no
pillow on the trolley and had a
pain in her head as a result.
Charnwood patient
999 service could have
been more helpful. I rang at
7.20am - no ambulance until
9am. Rang three times. No
oxygen left so had to give me
morphine instead.
City patient

14

Ambulance - We observed an extremely
busy period of ambulance arrivals resulting
in a build up of ambulances. This added
to the pressure on the department and
created delays in admitting the patients in
the ambulances.
Good practice – We were encouraged by
the joint working of LPT, UHL and GPs in
the A&E department to reduce hospital
admissions.
Car parking - Patients spoke about the
distance from the car park to the A&E
department. This caused difficulties in
navigating and transporting a sick child or
elderly person from the car park through
the hospital building and into A&E.

Things could be made clearer and
you should be reassured about what
is going on.
City patient
Any way of accessing x-ray without
visiting A&E would be helpful.
Otherwise I wouldn’t come to A&E.
Charnwood patient
“More communication about
what is happening to you - i.e.
not told why seeing doctor or
what some tests were for. The
doctor we saw was informative.”
Charnwood patient

37

Discharge Lounge
Hospital discharge can at times be a challenging process that impacts on
families, carers and health professionals.
The lack of consistent coordination between
heath and care services is clearly being felt by
patients, especially those with more complex
needs. The benefits of involving family
members and carers in a patient’s discharge
planning are evident, however this good
practice is not always upheld in a consistent
way.

8

Surveys completed

The discharge lounge is a fairly new and
welcome initiative that aims to provide a
comfortable and welcoming environment to
accommodate patients while they wait to be
discharged to their usual place of residence.
Our hope is that this lounge will ultimately
help to better the patient experience and will
support the hospital to address wider issues,
such as delayed discharge3 .

It’s pointless staying but I don’t
feel well enough to go home.
Hinckley & Bosworth patient

2
0

Leicestershire
Residents

4

Leicester
Residents

Rutland
Residents

2 people did not state if they were residents of the
city or county.

“I was informed that I would be
going to the discharge lounge just
moments before I was moved
from the ward. My bed was then
stripped around me while I waited
in the armchair next to the bed for
someone to take me to the lounge.“
Discharge Lounge Patient
3

Improving the urgent care system in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland: Focus on hospital discharge http://alturl.
com/rcs42

15

38
Discharge Lounge

What patients told us:
1 5 out of 7 patients waited between 2 – 4
hours before being discharged.

2 6 out of 8 patients felt they were not told
what would happen when they arrived at
the discharge lounge or how long they
would be waiting.

3 3 out of 6 patients said their treatment
by healthcare staff at the hospital was
‘Excellent’.

4 4 out of 7 patients had more than one
health condition. Of these, 2 out of 4
were unsure if all their conditions were
considered in their discharge planning.

Staff feedback
Staff are well placed to identify areas of
improvements to the department that would
benefit patients. We asked the staff if they
could change one thing that would allow
them to give better care to patients and
support them as a professional to improve the
experience of patients, what would it be? They
told us the following:




5 3 out of 6 patients said ‘no’ when
they were asked if staff involved family
members or carers when deciding to
discharge them.

6 3 out of 7 patients felt involved in the

enough to be discharged. When asked
what they would have liked to have
happen, they said they would like to be
taken to another hospital setting but not
home.

8 3 out of 6 patients were unsure or did
not know where to get support services
once they left hospital.

16

Earlier discharge planning on wards,
especially regarding writing prescriptions
(TTOs - To Take Out), so that patients can
be transferred to the discharge lounge
earlier. This in turn would help to plan
the patient’s departure/ transport from
the department.

Healthwatch observations



decision to be discharged.

7 2 out of 5 patients did not feel well

More activities for patients including
those with dementia. There are arts and
crafts available, however there is not a
member of staff allocated to carry out
these activities.






The staff were very good at
communicating with patients and
took time to explain medication
arrangements for patients to follow postdischarge.
Staff were very accommodating when
looking after patients needs and
explained how long they would need to
wait for transport.
Staff ensured that contact was made
with a relative, neighbour or carer before
the patient was discharged.
We found that information signs needed
to be more visible and larger.

39

Ophthalmology Dept. - Clinic
Visiting the department highlighted that demand for the services had
outgrown the physical space allocated for the department, more so in the
Windsor sections. Waiting time is by far the main issue that patients raised
with us on the day and many did not understand why appointments
consistently ran late.

56

Patients rated their experience as:

5.74
1
Poor

80%
20%

7
Excellent

of patients said that
their expectations
of the service were
met ‘very much’ or
‘extremely’.

; 39
29

Part A surveys
completed

Part B surveys
completed

18
9 people did
not state their
gender

of patients said that
their expectations of
the service were met
‘moderately’, ‘slightly’
or ‘not at all’.

34
1

Leicestershire
Residents
Out of Area

16
0

Leicester
Residents
Rutland
Residents

5 people did not state where they lived
17

40
Ophthalmology Dept. - Clinic

What patients told us:

80%

of the patients we spoke to
had attended the eye clinic
more than once in the last 12
months.

2

58%

of patients had experienced
cancellation of previous
appointments. 76% of those
patients were 65 years of age
or over. When asked how
much notice they were given,
it ranged from as little as a few
hours (same day notice) to five
months.

3

83%



of cancelled appointments
were rescheduled.

4

6.11

was the rating out of seven
given for being helpful.
Patients from the City rated
the helpfulness of reception
desk 6.34. Those from the
County gave a rating of 5.90.

5

7%

of patients struggled to find
the department on their first
visit.

1

6

5.80
Patients rated how easy it was to get an
appointment.

18

7

1 in 2

patients arrived by car.

8

45%

of the patients we spoke to
were 75 or over.

Ʈ

41
Ophthalmology Dept. - Clinic

Patient views
and Healthwatch
observations
Space - Many patients spoke about the
lack of space. This was particularly acute for
wheelchair users, especially if multiple users
were present at the same time as occurred on
the day we visited. There were also comments
about the general lack of space in the
department.
Modernisation - Modernising the waiting
room was an issue for many patients. This
included brightening up the room and the
need for more comfortable seating, especially
as the waiting times are quite lengthy and
there were many elderly patients that would
benefit from armchairs. Wi-Fi and TVs were
also mentioned to help entertain patients and
the temperature of the room was often very
warm with no ventilation or water machine.

Why do we have to have same
sex waiting/treatment areas? I was
given no option to accompany my
wife who was in a wheelchair and
who became quite upset to be left
without me for two hours.
Ophthalmology Carer
I have been coming for over
a year and cannot fault the
service everyone gives.
Harborough patient
Reception - Needs better
customer service. No eye
contact, treated as a number.
City patient

Communication - Many of the comments
that we received were based around
communication. Patients told us that they
would like improved information, especially
if appointments are running late. They
also thought that reception staff should
communicate important information and not
just write it on a board, as some people are
visually impaired. Other comments that were
made included:




More doctors are needed as the clinic felt
understaffed.
A speaker service to call patients would
be helpful.

19

42
Ophthalmology Dept. - Clinic

Staff feedback
We recognise that staff are well placed to identify areas of improvement to the
department that would benefit patients.
We asked the staff, if they could change one thing that would allow them to give better
care to patients and support them as a professional to improve the experience of
patients, what would it be?
Key issues they raised included:
Better signage was something that came
out very strongly not only in the staff
feedback but also in our own observations.
The signs and information that were
displayed in the department were often
unclear, unreadable from the patient’s seat
and very text heavy.
There were various pieces of information
on the walls and around the room,
however they were not in a format that
engaged patients and therefore were not
often read.
A better queuing system that does not
obstruct doorways or patients entering
the department was needed. Seating
arrangements that allow for better use by
wheelchair users and additional seating
were also needed. This should include
wider doorways for better all-round access.
Cutting down the walk between the
Balmoral clinic and the Windsor clinic
would be of benefit for patients who often
voiced their frustration about going back
and forth from one clinic to the other.
An advisor or nurse that was available to
help people understand their condition,
show patients how to put drops in their

20

eyes correctly and guide the less able
patients through the clinic process would
be helpful.
Clinics not overbooked so that doctors
can spend time with the patient.

43

Ophthalmology - Casualty
As this department is directly linked to the clinic and shares the same
waiting room, many of the logistical comments may match those that were
mentioned in the clinic survey. Visiting the department highlighted that
demand for the services had outgrown the physical space allocated for the
department.
Patients rated their experience as:

5.42
1
Poor

85%

15%

7
Excellent

of patients said that
their expectations
of the service were
met ‘very much’ or
‘extremely’.

27

; 13
11

Part A surveys
completed

Part B surveys
completed

13
3 people did
not state their
gender

of patients said that
their expectations of
the service were met
‘moderately’, ‘slightly’
or ‘not at all’.

12
1

Leicestershire
Residents

11

Leicester
Residents

Rutland
Resident

4 people did not state where they lived

21

44
Ophthalmology Dept. - Casualty

What patients told us:
1

42%
2

64%
3

4

35%

Ʈ

of patients had attended eye
casualty more than once in
the last 12 months. Of those
patients, 4 out of 10 tried to
book a GP appointment.

of patients tried to get help
somewhere else before
attending eye casualty. 56%
of them told us that they
contacted their GP.

of patients were advised
to attend eye casualty by
their GP and 27% made the
decision themselves.

patients arrived by car.

1 in 3
5

Y

21 out 25 had no problem
locating the department.

6 Patients rated the reception desk at 5.76.

5.76

22

More doctors so
you can cut down
waiting time.
Charnwood
patient

45
Ophthalmology Dept. - Casualty

Patient views
and Healthwatch
observations
There should be clearer signage
for patients explaining that they
need to take a number when
they walk in to the department,
as some patients didn’t realise.
There should also be some way
of showing where you are in the
queue.
Rutland patient
The examination area is not very
private.
North West Leicestershire
patient
My GP told us that they thought
it was a 24-hour walk-in for eye
casualty.
Rutland patient
I came down yesterday and my
appointment was cancelled. I
knew nothing about it, the clinic
thought I had cancelled it.
Blaby patient

There was mud all over the floor
during the time I was waiting, which
no-one came to clear up at all.
Hinckley & Bosworth patient
Would like to see more places for
wheelchairs and push chairs.
City patient
The information board could
be clearer and better used.
Harborough patient

The process whereby my GP faxed
my health concerns didn’t appear
to have worked. No one had a
copy or seemed to be interested.
I waited for one day after my GP
appointment to hear from the
Ophthalmology department. No
one telephoned me, so I rang
them but it just rang and rang. We
came to the department on the
speculation of being seen. This
process needs addressing.
Hinckley and Bosworth
patient

23

46

Ears, Nose and Throat (ENT)
Department
The ENT department aims to improve the quality of life for individuals
with ear, nose and throat disorders and provide timely and accurate
advice and information. Speaking to the 66 patients, it was very
interesting to hear their experiences and to listen to their suggestions to
make their overall experience even better.

66

Patients rated their experience as:

5.80
1
Poor

85%
15%

7
Excellent

of patients said that
their expectations
of the service were
met ‘very much’ or
‘extremely’.

; 40
44

Part A surveys
completed

Part B surveys
completed

19
3 people did not
state their gender

of patients said that
their expectations of
the service were met
‘moderately’, ‘slightly’
or ‘not at all’.

30
4

Leicestershire
Residents
Out of Area

11
1

Leicester
Residents
Rutland
Resident

20 people did not state where they lived

24

47
Ears, Nose and Throat (ENT) Dept

Working with Statutory Partners

What patients told us:

4.3

was the average rating out of
7 for how easy it was to get
an appointment.

7

2

75%

of patients had been to the
department before.

8

3

1 in 3

patients said they seldom or
never see their designated
consultant and 33% said
they always do.

37%



of patients had experienced
cancellation of previous
appointments. When asked
how much notice they were
given, it ranged from as little
as the same or one day’s
notice up to a few months.

5

79%

of cancelled appointments
were rescheduled.

6

Patients rated the reception desk 6.15
out of 7 and gave a rating of 4.85 out
of 7 for the environment in the waiting
room.

1

4

71%

Ʈ

28%

of patients arrived at the
hospital by car. 83% of
patients from the County
arrived by car as opposed
to 59% from the City.

of patients from
Leicestershire that attended
the department were 65
years of age or over as
appose to 17% from the City.
7% of patients from
Leicestershire that attended
the department were 75
years of age or over as
opposed to 0% from the City.

9

18%

of patients struggle to find the
department on their first visit.

6.15

25

48
Ears, Nose and Throat (ENT) Dept

Patient views and Healthwatch observations
Noise - Patients commented that the level
of background noise can be quite loud and
when the receptionists call a patient for
their appointment it can be difficult to hear.
Comments suggested that it might be useful
to have a screen showing the patient’s name
as well as staff calling out to patients who is
next.
Layout - The seating area is quite confusing
with seating facing in many different
directions. Some seating is side facing to
the reception desk and often the doctors
call patients from this point of the room
which may be out of the peripheral vision
of the patient. One patient told us that the
department should not solely rely on calling
patients verbally, especially when patients
who may be hard of hearing are being
treated.

Patients aged 75 years and over (23 patients)
wanted comfortable seats and armchairs,
more wheelchair space and a brighter room.

Other comments that were made:






Loud speakers for calling out patients
names would be helpful
A bit brighter and more cheerful waiting
room would improve the clinic as the
room felt a bit dark
More information on delays should be
provided
Medical information should be shown
on a TV

Information - Current posters and
information displays are not large enough to
read from a distance. Utilising the space on
the walls with information that is visible to the
seated patients would be of benefit.
On entering the waiting area there was a
small table with a jug of water and some
plastic cups placed on top of a cabinet.
This was apparently an offering of water to
patients but many patients did not know it
was there. Water would be better provided
in a water cooler, as the current method felt
slightly out-dated.
Patients aged 45 years to 74 years wanted
better reading material, Wi-Fi and a drinks/
coffee machine.

26

Patients aged 75 years
and over wanted comfy
seats and armchairs,
more wheel chair space
and a brighter room.

49
Ears, Nose and Throat (ENT) Dept

Notice board - Patients told us that the daily
waiting notice board information was not
correct. They requested more information on
delays and waiting times.
They also said that if a long appointment is
needed it should be planned to reduce the
knock on effect of delays.
In addition, patients also told us that
emergency patients wait too long, treatment
should be given much more quickly and that
sometimes you have to wait from 10am until
2pm.
Discharge - Patients told us that they are
often discharged and soon after require
treatment again as an outpatient. If
reappointment is needed, it means starting
the process again.
They also said that appointments are being
rescheduled with no reasons given and that

a better appointment system should be in
place.

Other comments that were made:
Difficult hearing when your name
is called. Would be useful to have
a screen showing your name
as well as staff calling out.
Oadby & Wigston patient
Car parking, signage,
communication between hospital
and GP surgery needs improving.
I was lost out of the system and
then my GP eventually was able
to sort it out.
City patient
Continuity of doctors.
Blaby patient

27

50

Patients’ Overall Experience
Overwhelmingly the patients we spoke to had a
positive experience at LRI.
Over all departments, patients gave a
rating of their experience at LRI as:

5.81
1
Poor

7
Excellent

I was reassured and helped by a
fantastic nurse and doctor. The
care my daughter received was
fantastic. Thank you.
Oadby and Wigston patient
We are lucky to have a great
A&E Department in Leicester.
Oadby and Wigston patient
The staff try their best and do a
good job.
Melton patient

28

82%

of patients said that
their expectations
of the service were
met ‘very much’ or
‘extremely’.

This is a breakdown of how people
rated their overall treatment at LRI.
When asked if the service met their
expectations patients responded:

29% Extremely
53% Very much
13% Moderately
2% Slightly
3% Not at all

51

Although the overall experience of patients was
positive, patients that were not satisfied by their
experience gave the following reasons:

18%

of patients said that
their expectations of
the service were met
‘moderately’, ‘slightly’
or ‘not at all’.

4 patients told us that the service
they received did not meet their
expectations at all.
It is very difficult to park outside
and get my 90 year old mother
into the hospital in a wheelchair.
City patient

Waited for hours on previous
appointment. Receptionist staff
never included notes on consultant
pile so did not get called.
Harborough patient
Once diagnosed with Glaucoma,
it became increasingly difficult to
get an appointment. Only got one
upon opticians referral.
Blaby patient

The department was short of
space for wheelchairs, especially
if multiple wheelchair users
arrived.
City patient
The amount of time to wait is
unbelievable, This clinic is not
manned sufficiently for the
volume of patients.
Hinckley & Bosworth patient

“It’s not good having to
wait when in pain. I find it
very annoying”.
Charnwood patient

29

52

What’s Next?
This report highlights ways the UHL NHS Trust can improve the overall patient
experience. The people we spoke to continue to be positive about their medical
treatment and care received, but reflect less well on communication, information and
waiting times.
As the local health watchdog for residents of Leicestershire, we provide authoritative, evidencebased feedback to organisations responsible for commissioning or delivering local health and
social care services.
Healthwatch Leicestershire will continue to support local NHS Trusts’ campaigns and initiatives
such as the Better Care Together Programme, a partnership of NHS organisations and local
authorities working together to transform local NHS and social care services over the next five
years.
From April 2015, we will be working with Loughborough University and Leicestershire County
Council on an exciting project that will support the development of patient-centric integrated
services to reduce emergency hospital admissions and improve the user experience. We hope
the project outcomes will play a crucial role in alleviating the pressures on the health economy
and will contribute towards providing the right support and care people need, in the most
appropriate setting.
Healthwatch Leicestershire will continue to gather evidence and insights from the public and
patients and champion their voice at every opportunity.

30

53

Acknowledgements
We would like to acknowledge the continued commitment of University Hospitals of
Leicester NHS Trust to work closely with Healthwatch Leicestershire to share and listen to
the patient voices of residents living in Leicester and Leicestershire.
We would also like to thank the volunteers and the staff team from both Healthwatch
Leicestershire and Healthwatch Leicester that helped to gather so many vital experiences of
patients at the Leicester Royal Infirmary:
Alastair Wood - Healthwatch Leicestershire Board member
Anne Collier - Healthwatch Leicestershire Board member
Ann Cluskey - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Barbara Czyznikowska - Healthwatch Leicester Staff
Cherelle Farrell - Healthwatch Leicestershire Staff
David Barsby - Healthwatch Leicester Staff
Fiona Barber - Healthwatch Leicestershire Board member
Gemma Hammond - Healthwatch Leicestershire Staff
Gillian Adams - Healthwatch Leicestershire Board member
Ivan Liburd - Healthwatch Leicestershire Staff
Jasleen Biring - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Kim Marshal - Healthwatch Leicester member
Micheal Smith - Healthwatch Leicester Staff
Mike Perks - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Mina Rogers - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Moraig Yates - Healthwatch Leicester member
Nye Canham - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Pat Fraser - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Rick Moore - Healthwatch Leicestershire Chair
Sue Hignett - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Tanuja Parmar - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Thaddaeus Douglas - Healthwatch Leicestershire Staff
Tricia Cornforth - Healthwatch Leicestershire member
Vandna Gohil - Healthwatch Leicestershire Director
Véronique Yonge - Healthwatch Leicestershire member

Finally, the support of our stakeholders is valued to strengthen our consumer voice.
Working better together, Healthwatch aims to improve the overall patient experience of
health and care services.

31

54

The following Healthwatch Leicestershire reports can be
downloaded from:
www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk/resources
Peaker Park Care Village Enter & View – April 2014
12 hours at A&E – June 2014
Lutterworth Country house Care Home Enter & View – July 2014
My Voice Counts Tour – July - Sept 2014
Patient Views on Quality of Services – Sept 2014
Glenfield Surgery Enter & View – January 2015

Healthwatch Leicestershire
Voluntary Action LeicesterShire
9 Newarke Street, Leicester
LE1 5SN
0116 2574 999
info@healthwatchleics.co.uk
www.healthwatchleicestershire.co.uk

January 2015

55

Agenda Item 8

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 14 MAY 2015
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF ADULTS AND COMMUNITIES
JOINT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE AUTISM SELF-ASSESSMENT
Purpose of report
1

The purpose of the report is to inform the Board on the findings of the 2014/15 Joint
Health and Social Care Autism Self-Assessment and on the use of a Department of
Health (DH) non recurrent Section 31 grant.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2

The purpose of the Autism Self-Assessment framework is to assist local authorities
and their partners in assessing progress of the implementation of the 2010 Adult
Autism Strategy. The Health and Wellbeing Board received a report in December
2013 on the 2013 Autism Self-Assessment.

3

The Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) Adult Asperger Strategy and
Delivery Action Plan 2010–2013, is being revised to reflect the findings of the selfassessments of each partner local authority.

4

In November 2014, all local authorities were informed of the award of a non-recurrent
Section 31 grant of £18,500. The purpose of the grant was to support each local
authority in its implementation of Think Autism.

Background
5

Directors of Adult Social Services were notified of the third self-assessment on the
implementation of the 2010 Adult Autism Strategy in December 2014. The
notification letter also included details of a non-recurrent grant being made available
to all local authorities of £18,500 to support the implementation of the Think Autism
priorities and five identified areas for action:
•
•
•
•
•

6

Increasing awareness and understanding of Autism;
Developing clear, consistent pathways for the diagnosis of autism;
Improving access for adults with autism to services and support;
Helping adults with autism into work;
Enabling local partners to develop relevant services.

The self-assessment comprised of 49 questions across seven sections: planning,
training, diagnosis, care and support, accommodation, employment and the criminal
justice system, with an additional two sections to highlight local good practice and the
experience of self advocates.

56

Key Findings
7

Previous self-assessments identified good progress being made on joint working
across LLR, diagnosis, provision of information and guidance and access to training.
The need for further improvement was identified in the collection of data about adults
receiving a service from the County Council and better engagement with the Criminal
Justice System.

8

The increased level of detail in this year’s self-assessment enables a more detailed
overview of progress against each of the seven areas:
a)

Planning
i)
Good progress (green): Autism is included and will continue to be included
in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment; an LLR action plan is being
developed to support effective local commissioning; Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCGs) are engaged in the planning and
implementation of the local autism strategy, people with autism and carers
are engaged in the planning of services.
ii)
Improvements needed (amber): There has been an improvement in the
ability to collect data on adults with autism through the introduction of
Integration Adults System, however, a period of embedding is needed to
ensure data is being accurately and constantly recorded; examples of
reasonable adjustments to services have been identified, however, these
are not widespread, transitions processes from children’s to adults’
services take into account the needs of young people once triggered by
parental request. This is expected to improve as the Special Educational
Needs and Disability programme develops.
iii)
Significant improvements (red): are needed on the collection of information
on the specific needs of older people, women and people from black and
minority ethnic (BME) communities with autism. This is being addressed
through the revised LLR Autism Strategy action plan which includes
specific actions to better understand these groups.

b)

Training
i)

ii)

Good progress (green) continues to be made on the provision of training
through a multi-agency autism training plan. It is being delivered through
partner agencies learning and development departments and the
Leicestershire Social Care Development Group (LSCDG). Training is
available to all staff in health and social care about autism, including
specialist training for staff undertaking assessments of people with autism.
The Police are engaged in autism awareness training through their Getting
It Right First Time training programme.
Significant improvements (red) are needed in the engagement of Criminal
Justice services and Probation services. Appropriate contacts are being
sought working with partners in the Police and through the implementation
of the Care Act.

57
c)

Diagnosis
i)

ii)
iii)

Good progress has been made on the integrated diagnostic pathway. A
pathway has been in operation since the late 1990’s. Partners continue to
review and revise the pathway to ensure it is fit for purpose. The pathway
includes diagnosis of children, young people and adults who may have
autism as single indicator of need and those who have a secondary
diagnosis such as learning disability.
Improvements are needed to ensure there is suitable access to speech
and language therapy services following diagnosis.
Significant progress (red) is needed to enable access to services such as
psychology and occupational therapy following diagnosis.

d)

Care and Support - Good progress is being made on the availability of suitability
trained advocates which support people to meaningfully participate in needs
assessment, care and support planning and safeguarding processes,
information is provided which is relevant to people with autism and their carers.
Where appropriate carers were offered assessments (this has subsequently
been superseded by the requirements of the Care Act to offer all carers an
assessment).

e)

Housing and Accommodation - Significant progress (red) is needed to ensure
that the housing needs of people with autism are included in local housing
strategies. Links have subsequently been made with District and Borough
Councils to raise awareness of the needs of people with autism.

f)

Employment
i)

ii)

g)

Improvements are needed to ensure there is an employment focus within
Transition processes, there is an expectation that Employment will be
considered as part of Education, health and care plans however, more
detail is needed to evidence good progress.
Significant progress is needed to promote employment of people with
autism.

Criminal Justice System - Good progress has been made as there is a Police
representative (Hate Crime Officer) on the LLR Autism Strategy Group and an
Autism “Keep Safe” card is being developed to support engagement between
individuals and the Criminal Justice services. People with autism have access
to appropriate adults’ services in custody suites and nominated “places of
safety”.

Local good practice
9

The County Council commissions the Leicestershire Information and Advice Hub
which provides advice and support to people with autism and their families. The Hub
provides access to an autism services directory in Leicestershire, a telephone
helpline, email enquiry desk and information about employment and support. Drop-in
sessions are also held across Leicestershire.

58
Self Advocate Account
10

An account from a young person with autism who has accessed the County Councils
“Get Set” programme was provided. Whilst there is much more work needed to
support young people into employment this was identified as an example of good
practice highlighting the impact that good support can make to young people with
autism:
“the position interested me, so we moved on to the next stage of the
process. From my perspective at least, this was a not-interview with
the team I could be working with. I say ‘not-interview’ because I’d
been in a lot of interviews, I think it was around 22-25 at that point,
and this didn’t feel anything like those. There was no real pressure,
no interrogations, no stern faces or piercing gazes trying to burrow
into your soul; just a friendly little chat, with the get set representative
by my side as backup for when by shyness overwhelmed me, and as
a (suspiciously) friendly face……..the people I met were friendly too,
(is that a requirement for working at the council? Its odd meeting so
many people that don’t want to punch me in the face) the question
they wanted answering was essentially ‘what can you do for us?’
Now at a glance that might seem similar to that dreaded ‘what can
you bring to our company?’ but it’s not. They wanted to know what
sort of work I’d feel comfortable doing for them, what I wanted.
Starting to sound like a narcissist perhaps, but it made a nice change
to have people asking me what role I’d like to take, rather than rating
me against some job description counting the number of boxes I
tick.”

Use of Grant
11

There are three elements to the project being funded by the Section 31 grant:
•

•
•

Purchase of hardware – tablets, smartphones, video cameras (one touch
camera such as a GoPro) which individuals can apply for and keep on the
condition they complete an initial survey on how they expect to use it and then
another survey on actual use in 6-12 months’ time. Successful applicants will
be provided with a list of apps that they may find helpful – specialist and
mainstream.
Development of the Leicestershire “app” Autisme which participants will be
expected to download and provide feedback on their use of it.
Research on the use of tablets and smartphones to increase independence and
support planning.

Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement
12

Local consultation has taken place through the LLR Autism Strategy Group which
includes adults with autism.

Resource Implications
13

The Section 31 grant is non-recurring. £18,500 was made available to every local
authority irrespective of the size of the local population.

59

14

There are no implications in relation to the completion of the self-assessment.
Actions arising from the assessment may have resource implications to partner
agencies but these will be assessed on a case by case basis.

Timetable for Decisions
15

The 2014 Self-Assessment was submitted on the 9 March 2015 as directed by the
DH.

Conclusions/Recommendations
16

The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider and comment on the findings
of the self-assessment to inform the development of the action plan arising from the
self-assessment.

Circulation under the Local Issues Alert Procedure
17

The report is relevant to all areas of Leicestershire.

Officer to Contact
Sandy McMillan
Assistant Director (Strategy and Commissioning)
Telephone: 0116 305 7454
Email:
sandy.mcmillan@leics.gov.uk
Louisa Whait
Strategic Commissioning manager – Learning Disability and Autism
Telephone: 0116 3050385
Email:
louisa.whait@leics.gov.uk
Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
18

The Self-Assessment is a means for local areas to assess their progress against
statutory requirements. The Self-Assessment has highlighted areas for further work
in relation to equalities: identifying the needs of women, older people and people
from BME communities with autism. There is evidence of reasonable adjustments
being made to ensure people with autism can access services.

Partnership Working and associated issues
19

The Self-Assessment was completed with partners from: Leicester City Council,
Rutland County Council, West Leicestershire CCG, East Leicestershire and Rutland
CCG, Leicester City CCG, Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust, and the LLR Autism
Strategy Group, which includes people with autism. Actions arising from the SelfAssessment will be completed with partners where appropriate.

60

This page is intentionally left blank

61

Agenda Item 9

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 14 MAY 2015
ADJUSTMENT TO EMERGENCY ADMISSIONS BASELINE FOR THE
BETTER CARE FUND PLAN – URGENT ACTION BY THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE
PART A
Purpose of the Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to inform the Health and Wellbeing Board of the urgent
action taken by the Chief Executive, following consultation with the Chairman of the
Health and Wellbeing Board, to approve increasing the total non-elective admission
target within the Better Care Fund to 2,041.

Policy Framework
2.

The County Council’s Constitution, which applies to the operation of the Health and
Wellbeing Board, gives power to the Chief Executive to take action between meetings
which he considers is urgent after consultation with the Chairman of the Board.

Background
3.

At its meeting on 12 March, the Health and Wellbeing Board was asked to consider
increasing the target for non-elective admissions from 1,911 to 2,041. This was
because the trend in non-elective admissions had shown an increase during 2014 of
approximately 6.8% when compared to 2013; meaning that a 3.5% reduction was now
a total of 2,041. The Health and Wellbeing Board was advised that there was
confidence that the revised target could be achieved.

4.

The meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board on 12 March was not quorate during
discussion of this item. The quorum of the Health and Wellbeing Board is a quarter of
the membership including at least one elected member from the County Council and
one representative of the Clinical Commissioning Groups. No representative from the
Clinical Commissioning Groups was present. It was therefore not possible for the
Board to take the decision and, due to the urgent need to get the revised baseline into
place; the Chief Executive of the County Council was therefore asked to use his
powers to take the decision required by the Board.

62

5.

The decision could not wait until the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board
because the baseline needed to be included in the Operating Plans of the Clinical
Commissioning Groups. These had to be submitted by 5th April 2015 and had to
contain the same target as that set out in the Better Care Fund Plan.

Views of Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board
6.

Those members of the Health and Wellbeing Board present at the meeting indicated
their support for the proposal. They requested that the Chief Executive sought the
views of the Clinical Commissioning Groups before taking the decision.
Representatives of the Clinical Commissioning Groups, when consulted, also
expressed their agreement with the proposal.

Recommendations
7.

It is recommended that the urgent action taken by the Chief Executive, as now
reported, be noted.

Officers to contact
John Sinnott
Tel. 0116 305 6000

Chief Executive
Email. john.sinnott@leics.gov.uk

Cheryl Davenport
Tel: 0116 305 4212

Director of Health and Care Integration
Email: Mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk

63

Agenda Item 10

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 14 MAY 2015
REPORT OF THE DIRECTION OF HEALTH AND CARE INTEGRATION
BETTER CARE FUND (BCF) QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORTING
Purpose of Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with
assurance on the quarterly reporting requirements for the Better Care Fund including
the pay for performance element of the fund, which is linked to achieving reductions
in emergency admissions.

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions
2.

The Health and Wellbeing Board approved Leicestershire’s Better Care Fund Plan in
September 2014.
(http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=3984&Ver=4)

3.

The day to day delivery of the Better Care Fund is overseen by the Leicestershire
Integration Executive per the TORs agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board in
March 2014.
(http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=3981&Ver=4)

4.

NHS England issued BCF implementation guidance on 20th March 2015
(http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/part-rel/transformation-fund/bcf-plan/) which set
out the requirements for quarterly reporting along with the draft templates and
analytical tools that are required to be used for this purpose.

5.

In March 2015 Leicestershire County Council and the county clinical commissioning
groups entered into a Section 75 Agreement to govern the Better Care Fund Pooled
budget, with the agreement coming into effect on April 1st 2015:
•

•

•

6.

Cabinet – 15th April 2015
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/Published/C00000135/M00003992/AI00038821/$8B
CFSection75Agreementv5Cabinetreport15July2014.docxA.ps.pdf
East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG – 17th March 2015
http://www.eastleicestershireandrutlandccg.nhs.uk/images/boardpapers/March2015_Papers%20Governing%20Body.pdf
West Leicestershire CCG – 31st March 2015
http://www.westleicestershireccg.nhs.uk/page/extra-ordinary-board-meeting31-march-2015

In April 2015 the Clinical Commissioning Groups submitted operating plans to NHS
England demonstrating the commitment to reduce emergency admissions associated

64
with the BCF.. These documents confirm the level of emergency admissions that
have been contracted for with acute NHS providers in 2015 on this basis.
Background
7. In line with national requirements, the September 2014 submission of Leicestershire’s
BCF Plan included a target to reduce the number of emergency admissions by 3.5%
during 2015.
8. At that time, total predicted emergency admissions for January to December 2015 were
54,594 with a target reduction through the Better Care Fund interventions of 1,911
(3.5%) to 52,683.
9. As the total amount of emergency admissions actually increased during 2014/15 (a trend
experienced nationally), it was agreed to amend the 2015 target using revised baseline
data.
10. The revised target continues to represent a 3.5% reduction, however using the new
baseline this means a reduction from 58,314 to 56,273 total emergency admissions is
needed through the Better care Fund interventions, which equates to a reduction of
2,041 admissions.
11. This amended baseline was recommended by the Integration Executive in February
2015, and approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2015 and has been
reflected in CCG operating plans.
Analysis of Current Performance (Provisional Data)
12. The first national reporting period for reducing emergency admissions via the Better Care
Fund is for the period January to March 2015, with a reporting date for this period of May
29th 2015.
13. At the time of writing this report the full, final validated data set for the period January to
March 2015 is not yet available as the final, validated NHS acute activity information for
the period January to March 2015 is not expected to be available until 15 May 2015.
14. In the meantime work has been undertaken using locally available interim data to
estimate overall performance against the pay for performance metric for the period
January to March 2015.
15. This provisional data shows that the total number of emergency admissions are
estimated to be 310 admissions above the planned/contracted for levels for
Leicestershire’s population for the quarter.
16. It should be noted that there are multiple factors that affect the total number of
emergency admissions within Leicestershire by quarter, not all of which can be
influenced by/mitigated by the interventions in Leicestershire’s Better Care Fund Plan.
17. This particular quarter includes the impact of the large spike in hospital activity
experienced nationally during the winter of 2014/15.

65
18. However, if the activity trend seen in the first quarter continues, the forecast is that up to
58,921 emergency admissions could occur in 2015 in Leicestershire, which is 2,648
above the planned activity total of 56,273 by December 2015.
19. The table below summarises the provisional data and illustrates the impact of the data, if
the provisional performance data between January to March is assumed to be accurate,
and is then replicated by quarter until the end of December.
Total Emergency
Admissions
Planned Activity
Forecast Activity
Activity Variance

Jan to
Mar
2015
13,746
14,056
310

Apr to
Jun
2015
13,909
14,665
756

Jul to
Sep
2015
14,209
14,947
738

Oct to
Dec
2015
14,409
15,253
844

Total

56,273
58,921
2,648

20. Leicestershire’s Better Care Fund plan includes four schemes which together are
targeted to reducing emergency admissions by 2,041 between January and December
2015. These are:
•
•
•
•

Rapid response falls service
7 day working in primary care
Rapid assessment older person’s unit (Loughborough)
Integrated health and care crisis response

21. Each scheme has been allocated a proportion of the 2,041 emergency admissions.
22. Between January and March 2015 these schemes are estimated to have avoided 384
emergency admissions compared to a target of 486. These figures are based on
specific clinical definitions for avoiding an admission, and a set of agreed performance
data is being captured to assess the impact by scheme by month.
23. The data arising from the 4 schemes will be independently evaluated during 2015
including through the research study being undertaken in partnership with Loughborough
University and Leicestershire Healthwatch.
24. If the data is assumed to be accurate, and performance continues on the same basis by
quarter, the number of avoided admissions for 2015 associated with the Better Care
Fund interventions is estimated to be 1,790, compared to the overall reduction required
of 2,041 required by December 31, 2015.
25. Further actions to increase the performance of the four existing schemes, (and consider
if any other schemes should be added to enhance performance in year) are being
assessed by the Better Care Fund operational group on the 14th May. Recommendations
will be made to the Integration Executive on the basis of this work at their meeting on
May 28th at which time the validated data set for January to March 2015 will also be
available for the Executive to consider.
Process to submit the first BCF quarterly report to NHS England

66
26. The BCF Operationalisation Guidance requires that a quarterly performance template is
submitted to NHS England by May 29th 2015, summarising emergency admissions
performance in the first quarter.

27. The template also requires the provision of information on a number of other Better Care
Fund metrics which include:
•
•
•
•
•

Permanent admissions to residential care
Effectiveness of reablement
Delayed transfers of care
Patient experience
Emergency admissions for injuries due to falls (local metric)

28. The template for reporting to NHS England has been issued in draft form allowing
officers to make some preparations, but NHS England have indicated this template may
be subject to further changes and is not expected to be published in its final form until
May 8th 2015.
29. On May 7th Clinical Commissioning Groups and Leicestershire County Council partners
will meet to review the performance and finance information associated with the pooled
budget. Officers will then prepare the information needed for the first quarterly
submission following the publication of the template on May 8th and the receipt of the
validated data for the period January to March on 15th May.
30. The Integration Executive will review the completed template at their meeting on May
28th and submit the required information to NHS England on May 29th on behalf of the
Health and Wellbeing Board.
31. Further assurance on this submission, including a copy of the submitted template will
follow at the July meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board.
Financial Implications
32. The pay for performance element of the Better Care Fund totals £3m. Clinical
Commissioning Groups will pay this into the Better Care Fund on a proportionate basis
relative to the actual reduction in emergency admissions during 2015.
33. Based on the current forecast to December 2015, the amount payable would be £2.7m,
equivalent to 1,790 avoided admissions leaving a funding shortfall of £0.3m.
34. As part of financial planning for the Better Care Fund, a contingency of £2.8m has been
set aside to deal with any potential underperformance against the reduction in the
emergency admissions target.
35. Any funding shortfall will therefore be offset against this contingency to ensure that the
delivery of the Better Care Fund Plan is fully funded in 2015/16.
Recommendation
36. The Board is recommended to note the contents of the report and approve the process
for submitting the first quarterly return to NHS England on May 29th.

67
Officer to Contact
Cheryl Davenport
Director of Health and Care Integration (Joint Appointment)
Cheryl.davenport@leics.gov.uk
0116 305 4212

Relevant Impact Assessments
Equality and Human Rights Implications
37. Developments within the Better Care Fund Plan are subject to equality impact
assessment and the evidence base supporting the Better Care Fund Plan has been
tested with respect to Leicestershire Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.
Partnership Working and associated issues
38. The delivery of the Better Care Fund Plan and the governance of the associated
pooled budget is managed in partnership through the collaboration of commissioners
and providers in Leicestershire.
39. Day to day oversight of delivery is via the Integration Executive through the scheme
of delegation agreed via the Integration Executive’s terms of reference which have
been approved by the Health and Wellbeing Board.
40. The delivery of the Leicestershire Better Care Fund ensures that a number of key
integrated services are in place and contributing to the system wide changes being
implemented through the 5 year plan to transform health and care in Leicestershire,
known as Better Care Together. http://www.bettercareleicester.nhs.uk/

68

This page is intentionally left blank

